
Minutes of a Meeting 

of the 

City of Bay Village Planning Commission 

held May 7, 2014 

 

Present: Barbour, Foster, Lesny Fleming, Lieske, Majewski, Persanyi 

  

Absent: Mr. Maddux 

 

Also Present: John Cheatham, Chief Building Official, SAFEbuilt, Inc. 

 

Audience:  Conda Boyd; Daryl Stump, Bay Village City School District, Marie 

Dowling, Architect for the Bay Village City School District project. 

 

Chairman Persanyi called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

 

Motion by Foster, second by Barbour, to approve the minutes of the meeting held April 2, 2014, 

as published and distributed.  Motion passed 4-0.  Mrs. Lieske arrived shortly after approval of 

minutes; Ms. Lesny Fleming arrived at 8:20 p.m.) 

 

Bay Village Board of Education 

Bay High School Softball Field and Practice Football Field 

Construction of dugouts, fence and backstop, grading, seeding and field drainage 

installation 

 

Mr. Daryl Stumph, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, Bay Village City School District, 

presented plans for Phase III of modifications and alterations to the athletic complexes of the 

Bay Schools.  Mr. Stumph advised that there will be no adjustment of location or size to the 

fields.  At this time, the softball field has very generic dugouts, and with these renovations they 

will have similar quality facilities for all the teams.  The softball field/practice football fields 

areas are shared areas.  There is an existing temporary fence.  Because they have to sequence 

their practices and teams, the work they want to get started on immediately is the 

dugout/improved backstop.  The grading will be done later. 

 

Marie Dowling, architect for the project, stated that the plans include a section of higher fencing 

by the backstop which matches what was done with the Junior Varsity Baseball Field.  It also 

matches what is being done with the fields in Cahoon Memorial Park.  The fence will be black 

vinyl chain-link fence with galvanized posts.  The goal post for football will remain as is.  The 

dugout is a wall with fencing around the edges and a roof structure similar to the metal roof 

structure of the Junior Varsity Field dugout.  The block of the dugout will be split-face.  The 



Minutes of Planning Commission meeting 

May 7, 2014 

 

2 

 

split-face will match what was done on the ticket booth and the concession stand.  Everything 

will have a similar look. 

 

Mr. Stumph stated that they hope that the dugout will be completed by the end of summer or 

early fall.  The football practice field needs to be used this fall, so grading will not begin until 

late fall or early spring.  They would like to have a minimal amount of time that the field is not 

being used because field time is so important for the schools. 

 

Mr. Persanyi advised that a public hearing will be necessary due to the fact that this is a public 

facility.  He asked if there will be compliance with the City of Bay Village Codified Ordinance 

No. 1309 regarding prevention of silt going off-site.  Marie Dowling stated that there will be a 

Storm Water Prevention Plan included in the bid documents.  Mr. Persanyi noted that the Storm 

Water Prevention Plan should be included in the plans presented to the Planning Commission. 

Compliance with Section 1309 is mandatory because of the size of the area that will be opened.  

Mr. Stumph added that during construction they always have barriers to the construction areas. 

 

Mr. Majewski stated that having coached softball at the high school for eleven years, he knows 

the field very well.  He knows the playability of the field, has hand raked it many times himself. 

He asked if drainage will be added to the field.  There is a field drain in the left center field that 

has always been a danger.  In the past it has been covered with a piece of wood and dirt so that 

no one would fall.  Ms. Dowling stated that the drain will be abandoned.   

 

Mr. Majewski asked if there are any plans to remove the trees in left field and behind the 

visitors’ dugout.  The trees are in the field of play and do affect the games.  Mr. Stumph stated 

that they have been trimming the trees.  They have avoided taking down the trees and there are 

no plans to do anything different than what they have been doing.  But, at some point if they are 

trimming multiple times of the year it is going to be cost prohibitive.  Mr. Majewski stated that 

removal of the tree branches out of the field of play would be a great improvement.  They do 

affect the ground rules of the game.  The overhanging branches have always been a problem. 

 

Mr. Majewski asked if there are any plans to extend any fencing beyond the dugouts.  Ms. 

Dowling stated that the fence will go past first base.  An angle that is beyond the throw from 

third to first base is usually chosen.  There will also be an extension to third base.  Mr. Majewski 

noted that spectators line that side and numerous people have been hit by balls there in the past, 

and the area is used as a warm-up spot for players.  It is important to have protection for the 

players with extensions of the fence on both sides. 

 

Concrete will be used in the dugout.  Mr. Majewski asked if there will be an on-deck circle 

similar to what the city has.  Mr. Stumph stated that they have copies of the warm up-cage.  Mr. 

Majewski recommended that there be an astro-turf pad in the on-deck circle.  The city has 



Minutes of Planning Commission meeting 

May 7, 2014 

 

3 

 

installed them. Mr. Majewski related his experience he has had with baseball and breaking of 

helmets that drop on the concrete, noting that the helmets crack and cannot be used again.  If 

concrete is going to be used in the on-deck circles, he asked that the astro-turf pad be used to 

save wear and tear on equipment. 

 

Permanent foul poles will be installed.  Mr. Majewski stated that electricity would have been 

beneficial on the field when he was coaching.  He noted that the posts are being installed for the 

scoreboard, and asked if there is anyway electricity can be brought out to the field for a pitching 

machine.  Mr. Stumph stated that there are nothing in the plans for bringing electricity to the 

field.  To do the power they had to trench from another location and the farther you go it 

becomes very costly. 

 

Mr. Barbour asked if there is a scoreboard for the softball field.  Mr. Stumph stated it is being 

erected behind the first base dugout of the Varsity Field.  Mr. Majewski added that it is very 

close to the visitor dugout of the Varsity Baseball Field. 

 

The fields do have built-in irrigation.  The football practice field has sprinklers.  Mr. Stumph 

needs a waiver from the city for paying the sewer charge for the sprinklers.  The cost last year 

was $25,000.  Mr. Stumph stated that everything is new.  The old system was around the football 

field.  There is a new system in the soccer fields, the junior varsity field, and the varsity baseball 

field.  The fields in this project already have a system which will be adjusted and lengthened so 

that there is coverage throughout.  

 

Mr. Foster suggested putting a T-111 or plywood ceiling in the dugout to keep the birds from 

nesting on the beams that run through the dugout. 

 

The block will be kept natural without painting.   

 

Mr. Persanyi stated that because of the 8 ft. fence a variance will be needed from the Board of 

Zoning Appeals.  Mr. Foster questioned the need for a variance since the fence is not a boundary 

fence.  He noted that you could technically say the backstop is also a fence, too; it is made out of 

chain-link.  It is not really a fence, per se.  Mr. Persanyi stated that it is a structure, and there 

should be a standard set of rules or ordinances for a city to have sporting facilities comply with a 

code, as opposed to each city setting their own code.  Right now, we have to deal with what we 

have in our ordinances regarding height of a fence and structures of this type.   

 

The height of the fencing on the field side of the dugout is 8 feet.  Mr. Majewski asked if there is 

an open space between the top of the fence and the roof of the dugout.  He noted that the old 

Junior Varsity Field had an opening between the top of the fence and the roof, although it wasn’t 

an 8 feet high fence, and a girl was hit in the face with a ball through the opening while standing 



Minutes of Planning Commission meeting 

May 7, 2014 

 

4 

 

in the dugout.  Mr. Stumph stated that there is a little gap.  Mr. Majewski expressed that 8 feet 

sounds like it would provide enough protection.   

 

Mr. Majewski commented that the improvement to the softball fields is long overdue. 

 

Motion by Majewski, second by Barbour, to submit the plans for the renovation of the Varsity 

Softball Field and the Football Practice Field for a public hearing at the meeting of the Planning 

Commission to be held June 4, 2014.     

 

Roll Call Vote: Yeas – Barbour, Foster, Lieske, Majewski, Persanyi 

   Nays – None. 

 

Motion passed 5-0. 

 

Mr. Cheatham noted that the Board of Zoning Appeals meeting of June 5 is the day after the next 

Planning Commission meeting.  The deadline for the May 15 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting 

has passed. 

 

Mr. Persanyi stated that contingent approvals are granted in certain situations, if necessary. 

 

Council Update 

 

Mrs. Lieske stated that Council did not meet for a couple of weeks over the holiday.  The last 

meeting of Council in April was on April 14, and Council did not meet again until May 5, 2014.   

 

There are two fundraisers underway to raise money for the Fourth of July Fireworks.  The tickets 

are $25.00 each, or five for $100.00.  One prize is to have access to a pleasure boat for one year 

at three marinas in the Lake Erie vicinity, as well as many other places throughout the country.  

An additional prize is a loge at a Cleveland Indians Baseball game on August 22 with admission, 

food, and parking for 12 people. 

 

The moratorium on attached residence development has been extended by City Council for a 

period of 90 days past the April 25 expiration date to allow Council to finish their study of the 

provisions of Chapter 1158. 

 

Contract with McKeon Educational Services was renewed for a period of one year to provide 

counselling services through the program known as Bay Family Services.  Students and families 

in the community who are dealing with family related, drug, alcohol, or other issues benefit from 

this program which is paid for jointly by the City and the Schools. 

Phase 2 of the Westshore Regional Fire District Study was approved by Council. 



Minutes of Planning Commission meeting 

May 7, 2014 

 

5 

 

 

An ordinance to establish a fund for the collection of reimbursements by residents whose 

sidewalks are repaired, trees removed, or grass cut by the city was also established by Council. 

 

Included on the May 12 agenda of Council is the review of the work of the Planning 

Commission concerning Chapter 1158, Attached Residence District.  Mrs. Lieske thanked the 

Planning Commission members for all of their hard work, noting that they have given the 

Council committee a solid place to start.  Mrs. Lieske thanked Mr. Persanyi and Mr. Majewski 

for their attendance at recent Council committee meetings noting that they provide a valuable, 

historical perspective.  Mrs. Lieske invited all Planning Commission members to attend the 

Council meeting on Monday, May 12 beginning at 7:30 p.m. 

 

Mr. Persanyi asked if Council plans to have Chapter 1158 revised in time for the November 

ballot if someone comes forward with a plan.  Mrs. Lieske stated that this was the reason for 

wanting to expedite these two committee meetings with Council.  The Planning Commission and 

the Council Planning, Zoning, Public Buildings and Grounds Committee have done their part to 

facilitate any revisions.  It is now in the hands of the Council Committee of the Whole.  Mrs. 

Lieske commended everyone for their work, noting that it was not an easy process. 

 

Mrs. Lieske stated that the proposed addition of the Bay Skate and Bike Park will be coming to 

the Planning Commission on June 4, 2014.   The addition is to be to the southeast corner of the 

existing skate park and in the presentation to Council it was stated that it is a flat area where the 

skaters wait to try the stunts.  The area gets crowded and the expansion is wanted to provide 

more room for people to wait.  Additional information beyond the graphics that were provided to 

Council has been asked of Mr. Lawrence Kuh, who represents the Bay Skate and Bike Park 

Foundation. 

 

Mr. Persanyi asked if the Police Department has had any serious issues with the skate park.  This 

was a concern expressed when they originally applied to the City for the facility.  Mrs. Lieske 

stated that Councilman Henderson, who chairs the Parks and Recreation Committee, contacted 

the Police Chief about that matter.  The Police have had 93 calls over a four-year period of time 

and most of those calls had to do with Sunday usage of the park.  Once that was resolved there 

have not been as many calls.  The Chief will check further to see if there were calls pertaining to 

other matters, including drugs, and if they concerned Bay Village residents or non-Bay Village 

residents. 

 

Mr. Majewski suggested that the Fire Chief be asked to provide any information the Fire 

Department has concerning calls regarding injuries at the park. 

 



Minutes of Planning Commission meeting 

May 7, 2014 

 

6 

 

Mr. Persanyi stated that he would like to see the reports of both departments because this was 

one of the concerns of the residents. 

 

Mr. Majewski referred to a memorandum to Police Chief Spaetzel from Lieutenant Calvin 

Holliday dated May 5, 2014 regarding the Bay High School Athletic Fields, in response to a 

request for comments from the Police Department regarding the project before the Planning 

Commission.  The memorandum states that the schools intend to install a paved walking path, 

similar to what currently exists in Bradley Park, which will enable Bay Village Police vehicles to 

drive around in the more secluded areas checking for any unusual activities.  Mr. Barbour stated 

that he was informed that the cinder track with fitness equipment will be turned into a paved 

track such as the track at Bradley Park.  That will not be part of the project that is currently 

before the Planning Commission.  The Commission agreed that this will be helpful when 

emergency vehicles are needed. 

 

 Mr. John Cheatham of SAFEbuilt, Inc., advised that the Commission will be receiving an 

application for the Crestview Extension Subdivision.  Polaris Engineering is preparing a 

submittal for nine lots.  Mr. Persanyi asked Mr. Cheatham to research what other cities in the 

area have for cul-de-sacs since this has been a controversy in the past.  Mr. Cheatham stated that 

the applicant has informed him that they would like to present a smaller cul-de-sac to provide for 

larger lots.  Mr. Cheatham informed them of the sections of the code that apply, and reminded 

them of the need for safety equipment to navigate the cul-de-sac.  The developer also mentioned 

the possibility of a narrower street than the 50 feet width required by code. 

 

Mr. Majewski stated that it would be good to have the Thoroughfare Plan for that area when the 

application comes before the Planning Commission to see what the plan calls for at the end of 

Crestview Drive. 

 

Mr. Cheatham informed the applicant that they are required to submit a $1000 deposit with their 

Planning Commission application so that the Planning Commission, if they desire, can have 

engineering review.  If that money is spent, they are required to add another $1,000.  Once they 

go through $850 they have to bring it back to $1000. 

 

There being no further comments this evening, the meeting adjourned at 8:21 p.m. 

 

 

 

_____________________________    ___________________________ 

Bela Persanyi, Chairman       Joan Kemper, Secretary 


